Special Meeting Agenda
City Council
12:00 p.m. (Noon) Special Meeting
Monday, March 21, 2022
Jack Powell Conference Room – City Hall
25 Center Street
Vermillion, South Dakota 57069
1. Roll Call
2. Adoption of the Agenda
3. Visitors to be Heard
4. Educational Session – Review of proposed law enforcement center cost of construction information –
John Prescott.
5. Briefing on the March 21, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting– Briefings are intended to be
informational only and no deliberation or decision will occur on this item.
6. Adjourn.
Access the City Council Agenda on the web – www.vermillion.us
Addressing the Council: Persons addressing the Council shall be recognized. Please state your name and address. Presentations are
limited to 5 minutes. For those who do not appear on the agenda, no decision is to be expected at this time.
Meeting Assistance: If you require assistance, alternative formats and/or accessible locations consistent with the Americans with
Disabilities Act, please contact the City Manager’s Office at 677-7050 at least 3 working days prior to the meeting.
Council Meetings: City Council regular meetings are held the first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. If a meeting falls on
a City holiday, the meeting will be scheduled for the following Tuesday.
Live Broadcasts of Council Meetings on Cable Channel: Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3.
As a courtesy to others, we ask that cellular phones and other electronic devices be turned off during the meeting.

City of Vermillion Council Agenda

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting
Monday, March 21, 2022
City Council Chambers
25 Center Street
Vermillion, South Dakota 57069

1. Roll Call
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Minutes
a. March 7, 2022 Special Meeting, March 7, 2022 Regular Meeting, March 8, 2022 Joint Meeting with Clay
County.
4. Adoption of the Agenda
5. Visitors to be Heard
a. Disability Awareness Month proclamation.
6. Public Hearings
a. Application for funding from the South Dakota DANR for financial assistance for Tom Street lift station
project.
b. Medical Cannabis Dispensary License for Dakota Natural Growers, Inc. at 907 N. Norbeck Street.
c. Medical Cannabis Dispensary Licenses for Dakota Herb, LLC. at 112 E Main Street.
7. Old Business
a. Second reading of Ordinance 1457 amending Title XV, Land Usage; Chapter 155, Zoning Regulations;
Section 155.008, Definitions, to amend the Term “Kennel”.
b. Second reading of Ordinance 1459 amending Title XV, Land Usage; Chapter 155, Zoning Regulations;
Section 155.037, GB General Business District, subset (B) Conditional Uses, to Include “Kennel” as a
Conditional Use.
c. Second reading of Ordinance 1458 amending Title XV, Land Usage; Chapter 155, Zoning Regulations;
Section 155.039, GI General Industrial District, subset (B) Conditional Uses, to Include “Kennel” as a
Conditional Use.
8. New Business
a. First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 1460 Amending Title XI, Business Regulations; Chapter 114,
Transportation Network Drivers and Companies; Sections 114.02 and 114.06 Amending the Taxicab
License/Application Requirements and Requiring a Rate Card.
b. First reading of Proposed Ordinance 1461 Amending Title VII, Traffic Code; Chapter 70, General Traffic
and Parking Regulations, Section 70.072, Prohibited in Certain Places, Adding End of Driveway Parking.
c. Resolution authorizing application for financial assistance from the South Dakota DANR for Tom Street
lift station project.
d. Vacate Utility Easement between Lots 8 and 9, Block 6, Bliss Pointe Addition, City of Vermillion, Clay
County, South Dakota.
e. 2021 Unaudited Annual Report.
f. Consolidated Board of Equalization appointments.

9. Bid Openings
a. Cleanup of Bike Trail from 12th Street to Morse Street Quote.
10. City Manager’s Report
11. Invoices Payable
12. Consensus Agenda.
13. Adjourn
Access the City Council Agenda on the web – www.vermillion.us
Addressing the Council: Persons addressing the Council shall use the microphone at the podium. Please raise your hand to be
recognized, go to the podium, and state your name and address.
a. Items Not on the Agenda Members of the public may speak under Visitors to Be Heard on any topic NOT on the agenda. Remarks
are limited to 5 minutes and no decision will be made at this time.
b. Agenda Items: Public testimony will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has been announced by the
Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen who wishes may speak one time for 5 minutes on each agenda item. Public testimony will
then be closed, and the topic will be given to the governing body for possible action. At this point, only City Council members and staff
may discuss the current agenda item unless a Council member moves to allow another person to speak and there is unanimous consent
from the Council. Questions from Council members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the presiding
officer at any time.
Meeting Assistance: The City of Vermillion fully subscribes to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. If you
desire to attend this public meeting and need special accommodations, please notify the City Manager's Office at 677-7050 at least 3
working days prior to the meeting so appropriate auxiliary aids and services can be made available.
Council Meetings: City Council regular meetings are held the first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. If a meeting falls on
a City holiday, the meeting will be scheduled for the following Tuesday. The City Council typically has a Special Meeting on the first
and third Monday of each month at Noon.
Live Broadcasts of Council Meetings on Cable Channel: Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3

Vermillion City Council’s Values and Vision
This community values its people, its services, its vitality and growth, and its quality of life and sees itself reinforcing and
promoting these ideals to a consistently increasing populace.

Unapproved Minutes
Council Special Session
March 7, 2022
Monday 12:00 noon
The special session of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South Dakota
was held on Monday, March 7, 2022 at 12:00 noon at the John “Jack” Powell
Conference Room.
1. Roll Call
Present: Hellwege, Holland, Humphrey, Jennewein, Letellier, Price, Ward,
Mayor Collier-Wise
2. Adoption of Agenda
56-22
Council Member Holland moved approval of the agenda. Council Member
Ward seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor Collier-Wise
declared the motion adopted.
3. Visitors to be Heard - None
4. Informational Session – End of Driveway Parking code changes and
ticket cost- Stone Conley
Stone Conley, Assistant City Manager, reported on the final changes to
the end of driveway parking code. Stone noted that parts of the code
from Manhattan Kansas was included in the revised ordinance to
accommodate end of drive-way parking. Stone reviewed the current parking
ticket prices with the Council and proposed a change to $20 if before 10
days, $40 if after 10 days and $50 after 30 days. Mayor Collier-Wise
noted that a committee should be put together to discuss further parking
problems to assess the entire city.
5. Informational Session- Taxicab ordinance changes- Stone Conley
Stone Conley, Assistant City Manager, reported on the current taxicab
ordinance and potential changes. Stone noted that the proposed changes
to 114.02 (B) is based on Yankton’s ordinance. Stone stated that the
major change would be to require taxicab companies and their drivers to
submit background checks to the DCI and FBI. Discussion followed on the
taxicab ordinance.
6. Briefing on the March 7, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting.
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Council reviewed items on the agenda with City staff. No action was
taken.
7. Adjourn
57-22
Council Member Ward moved to adjourn the Council special session at 12:23
p.m. Council Member Price seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0.
Mayor Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 7th day of March, 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor
ATTEST:
BY___________________________________
Katie E Redden, Finance Officer

Unapproved Minutes
City Council Regular Session
March 7, 2022
Monday 7:00 p.m.
The regular session of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South Dakota
was called to order on March 7, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Collier-Wise.
1. Roll Call
Present: Hellwege, Holland, Humphrey, Jennewein, Letellier, Price, Ward,
Mayor Collier-Wise, Student Representative Keandra Rhead
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Minutes
A. Minutes of February 22, 2022, Special Session and February 22, 2022,
Regular Session
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58-22
Council Member Holland moved approval of the February 22, 2022 Special
Session and February 22, 2022 regular session minutes. Council Member
Hellwege seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor Collier-Wise
declared the motion adopted.
4. Adoption of Agenda
59-22
Council Member Price moved approval of the agenda. Council Member
Humphrey seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor Collier-Wise
declared the motion adopted.
5. Visitors to be Heard
A. Proclamation of Appreciation for J. Howard Willson, Vermillion City
Council Member
Mayor Collier-Wise presented Alice Willson with a proclamation
appreciating the late J. Howard Willson on his many years of public
service. Mayor Collier-Wise stated that, on behalf of the community and
City staff, we hereby extend our deepest sympathies to the family of
Howard Willson on his passing and wish to express profound gratitude for
the gift of Howard Willson and his time and dedicated service to the
Vermillion community.
B. Proclamation Supporting the People of Ukraine
Council Member Julia Hellwege read and Mayor Collier-Wise presented
Ruslan Podviianiuk, a USD faculty member, originally from Ukraine with
a proclamation supporting the people of Ukraine during this desperate
time and urging the United States Government to support and strengthen
the defense of Ukraine.
Ruslan Podviianiuk stated that 80 years ago Ukrainians stated that was
their last war, but once again fighting has started. Ruslan thanked the
American people and government on the aid and support they have shown.
6. Public Hearings
A. Request from the Vermillion Area Arts Council for a Special Daily onsale malt beverage and wine license for a special event on or about
Saturday, March 19, 2022 at 202 Washington Street.
Katie Redden, Finance Officer, reported that an application was received
from the Vermillion Area Arts Council for an event to be held on or about
March 19, 2022 at 202 Washington Street. Katie stated that the notice of
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hearing and the Police Chief’s report are included in the packet. Katie
noted that the routine Police Department records check of the parties
involved with the special daily license revealed no alcohol related
violations or felony convictions in reference to this application.
60-22
Council Member Ward moved approval of the Vermillion Area Arts Council
Special Daily on-sale malt beverage and wine license for a special event
on or about Saturday, March 19, 2022 at 202 Washington Street. Council
Member Price seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor CollierWise declared the motion adopted.
B. First reading of Ordinance 1457 amending Title XV, Land Usage; Chapter
155, Zoning Regulations; Section 155.008, Definitions, to amend the Term
“Kennel”
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported on the first reading of Ordinance
No. 1457. Jose stated that, in November 2021, the City received a request
for the construction of a kennel within the GB General Business district.
Jose noted that when staff reviewed the zoning ordinance to ensure that
the use was allowed, it was discovered that “kennels” are not allowed
within General Business zoning district as a stand-alone use. Jose noted
that the only way a “kennel” is allowed is in conjunction with veterinary
clinics. Jose stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission)
meeting on February 14, 2022 addressed the issue and staff was directed
to commence City initiated zoning amendments. Jose noted that the zoning
amendments would modify the definition of the word “kennel” and would
place “kennels” as conditional uses in the GI General Industrial and GB
General Business districts.
Jose noted that the current Zoning Ordinance was adopted in 2019 which
amended the 2008 zoning ordinance. Jose stated that, in the 2008
ordinance, “kennels” were a conditional use in the GB General Business
district and required that “kennels” be no closer than 1,000-feet to
residential uses. Jose noted that the separation distance was reduced in
2012 from 1,000-feet to 150-feet and the latest adoption of the zoning
ordinance does not include “kennels” as a stand-alone use. Jose noted
that staff was not able to find any reference regarding the removal of
the use within any Commission or City Council minutes.
Jose noted that, at the February 28, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting, staff proposed that the definition of “kennel” be amended with
a new sentence that would read “Animals may be kept for a month at a
time.” Jose noted that, at the public hearing, the Commission amended
Staff’s proposal to read “Animals may be kept for a maximum of 30 days
at a time.” Jose stated that the Commission recommended unanimously that
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the City Council approve the amendment to the definition of “kennel” as
proposed by the Commission.
61-22
Mayor Collier-Wise read the title to the above-mentioned Ordinance and
Council Member Price moved adoption of the following Resolution:
BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes of this meeting shall show that the title
to proposed Ordinance No. 1457 entitled amending Title XV, Land Usage;
Chapter 155, Zoning Regulations; Section 155.008, Definitions, to amend
the Term “Kennel” of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota has been read
and the Ordinance has been considered for the first time in its present
form and content at this meeting being a regularly called meeting of the
Governing Body of the City on this 7th day of March, 2022 at the Council
Chambers in City Hall in the manner prescribed by SDCL 9-19-7 as amended.
The motion was seconded by Council Member Holland. After discussion the
question of adoption of the Resolution was put to a vote of the Governing
Body and 8 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted in opposition
to the motion. Mayor Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
C. First reading of Ordinance 1459 amending Title XV, Land Usage; Chapter
155, Zoning Regulations; Section 155.037, GB General Business District,
subset (B) Conditional Uses, to Include “Kennel” as a Conditional Use.
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported on the first reading of Ordinance
No. 1459. Jose stated that, in November 2021, the City received a request
for the construction of a kennel within the GB General Business district.
Jose noted that when staff reviewed the zoning ordinance to ensure that
the use was allowed, it was discovered that “kennels” are not allowed
within General Business zoning district as a stand-alone use. Jose noted
the only way a “kennel” is allowed is in conjunction with veterinary
clinics. Jose stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission)
meeting on February 14, 2022 addressed the issue and staff was directed
to commence City initiated zoning amendments. Jose noted that the zoning
amendments would modify the definition of the word “kennel” and would
place “kennels” as conditional uses in the GI General Industrial and GB
General Business districts.
Jose noted that the current Zoning Ordinance was adopted in 2019 which
amended the 2008 zoning ordinance. Jose stated in the 2008 ordinance
“kennels” were a conditional use in the GB General Business district and
required that “kennels” be no closer than 1,000-feet to residential uses.
Jose noted that the separation distance was reduced in 2012 from 1,000feet to 150-feet and the latest adoption of the zoning ordinance does
not include “kennels” as a stand-alone use. Jose noted that staff was
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not able to find any reference regarding the removal of the use within
any Commission or City Council minutes.
Jose noted that this amendment is Staff’s proposal to place kennels as
a conditional use in the GB General Business district. Jose noted that,
besides allowing kennels as conditional uses, the amendment will also
require that kennels be at least 150-feet away from residential districts
and this would be measured from building to building. Jose stated that
it should be noted that “Small Animal Veterinarians” are also a
conditional use within the General Business district which this use also
includes kenneling, and they also have the same distance restriction.
Jose stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item
at their February 28, 2022 meeting and the Commission unanimously
recommended that the City Council adopt the ordinance as presented.
62-22
Mayor Collier-Wise read the title to the above-mentioned Ordinance and
Council Member Holland moved adoption of the following Resolution:
BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes of this meeting shall show that the title
to proposed Ordinance No. 1459 entitled amending Title XV, Land Usage;
Chapter 155, Zoning Regulations; Section 155.037, GB General Business
District, subset (B) Conditional Uses, to Include “Kennel” as a
Conditional Use of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota has been read
and the Ordinance has been considered for the first time in its present
form and content at this meeting being a regularly called meeting of the
Governing Body of the City on this 7th day of March, 2022 at the Council
Chambers in City Hall in the manner prescribed by SDCL 9-19-7 as amended.
The motion was seconded by Council Member Hellwege. After discussion the
question of adoption of the Resolution was put to a vote of the Governing
Body and 8 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted in opposition
to the motion. Mayor Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
D. First reading of Ordinance 1458 amending Title XV, Land Usage; Chapter
155, Zoning Regulations; Section 155.039, GI General Industrial District,
subset (B) Conditional Uses, to Include “Kennel” as a Conditional Use.
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported on the first reading of Ordinance
1458. Jose states in November 2021, the City received a request for the
construction of a kennel within the GB General Business district. Jose
noted that when staff reviewed the zoning ordinance to ensure that the
use was allowed, it was discovered that “kennels” are not allowed within
General Business zoning district as a stand-alone use. Jose noted that
the only way a “kennel” is allowed is in conjunction with veterinary
clinics. Jose stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission)
meeting on February 14, 2022 addressed the issue and staff was directed
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to commence City initiated zoning amendments. Jose noted that the zoning
amendments would modify the definition of the word “kennel” and would
place “kennels” as conditional uses in the GI General Industrial and GB
General Business districts.
Jose noted that the current Zoning Ordinance was adopted in 2019 which
amended the 2008 zoning ordinance. Jose stated that, in the 2008
ordinance, “kennels” were a conditional use in the GB General Business
district and required that “kennels” be no closer than 1,000-feet to
residential uses. Jose noted that the separation distance was reduced in
2012 from 1,000-feet to 150-feet and the latest adoption of the zoning
ordinance does not include “kennels” as a stand-alone use. Jose noted
that staff was not able to find any reference regarding the removal of
the use within any Commission or City Council minutes.
Jose noted that this amendment is Staff’s proposal to place kennels as
a conditional use in the GI General Industrial district. Jose noted that
placing the use in this district, in addition to the GB General Business
district, will increase the location where a possible kenneling business
may operate. Jose stated that, besides allowing kennels as conditional
uses, the amendment will also require that kennels be at least 150-feet
away from residential districts and would be measured from building to
building.
Jose stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item
at their February 28, 2022 meeting and the Commission unanimously
recommended that the City Council adopt the ordinance as presented.
63-22
Mayor Collier-Wise read the title to the above-mentioned Ordinance and
Council Member Hellwege moved adoption of the following Resolution:
BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes of this meeting shall show that the title
to proposed Ordinance No. 1458 entitled amending Title XV, Land Usage;
Chapter 155, Zoning Regulations; Section 155.039, GI General Industrial
District, subset (B) Conditional Uses, to Include “Kennel” as a
Conditional Use of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota has been read
and the Ordinance has been considered for the first time in its present
form and content at this meeting being a regularly called meeting of the
Governing Body of the City on this 7th day of March, 2022 at the Council
Chambers in City Hall in the manner prescribed by SDCL 9-19-7 as amended.
The motion was seconded by Council Member Ward. After discussion the
question of adoption of the Resolution was put to a vote of the Governing
Body and 8 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted in opposition
to the motion. Mayor Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
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7. Old Business - None
8. New Business
A. Annual Library Report
Dan Burniston, Librarian, reported that State law requires the Library
Board to prepare and submit an annual report to the governing body and
the State Library. Dan reported that the Library Board reviewed and
accepted the annual report at their February meeting. Dan reviewed the
2021 Library Annual Report that was included in the packet. Dan answered
questions of the City Council on the Library Annual Report. Discussion
followed.
64-22
Council Member Price moved to acknowledge receipt of the 2021 Library
Annual Report. Council Member Holland seconded the motion.
B. Request to transfer six Fire Department gear lockers to the Gayville
Fire Rescue Department
Matthew Callahan, Fire Chief, reported on a request to transfer six gear
lockers to the Gayville Fire Rescue Department. Matthew noted that, due
to the amount of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) that each Fire
Department member has, the Department has been looking to replace the
current gear racks at Station 1. Matthew stated that the Rural Fire
Department in their 2022 budget allocated for the replacement purchase
of new PPE gear racks for Station 1 to replace the current racks which
were purchased approximately 20 years ago. Matthew noted that, with the
purchase of these new gear racks, the Department would like to transfer
ownership of 6 old gear racks to the Gayville Fire Rescue Department in
Gayville, SD.
65-22
Council Member Ward moved approval of the request to transfer six Fire
Department gear lockers to the Gayville Fire Rescue Department. Council
Member Humphrey seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor
Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
C. Ground storage reservoir Change Order #2
Shane Griese, Utility Manager, reported on Change Order #2 for the ground
storage reservoir. Shane noted that, in July of 2019, the City Council
awarded the Ground Storage Reservoir Improvements project to Viking
Industrial Painting which including the sandblasting and recoating of
the interior of the reservoir located on Church Street. Shane stated
that, in October of 2019, Change Order #1 was approved to allow for lead
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abatement after lead-based paint was discovered on the roof. Change Order
#1 was in the amount of $60,556.60. Shane stated that, in late October
of 2019, it was discovered that additional metal work was going to be
needed to finish the project. Shane noted that, with an estimated cost
of less than $15,000 and time constraints, this change was verbally
approved by City staff. Shane noted that most of the work was completed
in late 2019 with some touch up and final coatings being performed in
May-June of 2020.
Shane stated that, for unknown reasons, the City did not receive a final
bill from Viking Industrial Painting until December of 2021. Shane stated
that, at this time, staff received a cost break down for the additional
metal work in the amount of $46,084.51. Shane stated that staff disputed
these additional costs and Viking recently submitted an updated cost
breakdown for Change Order #2 in the amount of $19,286.39. Shane noted
that the additional work included with Change Order #2 will increase the
cost of the project by $19,286.39. Shane stated that the original project
was awarded in the amount of $282,500 plus Change Order #1 ($60,556.60)
increased the total project cost to $343,056.60. Shane noted that, if
Change Order #2 is approved, the project cost will increase by
$19,286.39, bringing the total project cost to $362,342.99.
Shane stated that a final pay request was received in the amount of
$37,512.72, this includes retainage of $18,226.33 from the original
contract and the $19,286.39 from Change Order #2. Shane noted that these
charges were not included in the 2022 budget and will need to be revised.
66-22
Council Member Ward moved approval of the Ground storage reservoir Change
Order #2. Council Member Hellwege seconded the motion. Motion carried 8
to 0. Mayor Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
9. Bid Openings
A. Water Treatment Plant Roof Repairs
Shane Griese, Utility Manager, reported on a bid for the water treatment
plant roof repairs. Shane stated that the City’s Water Treatment Plant
located at 118 Church Street has two roofs at two different levels. Shane
noted that the higher roof was installed as part of the Water Plant
Expansion Project in 2006 and is not currently in need of replacement.
Shane stated that the original Water Plant or lower roof was built in
1971 and the roof was last redone in 1991. Shane noted that bid
specifications were sent to four potential bidders in the area and Staff
received 4 bids for the project. Shane noted that bids were opened March
2, 2022, and the low bid was from Winkler Roofing, Inc., from Sioux City,
IA in the amount of $58,700. Shane noted that the high bid was for
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$147,292.00. Shane stated that the 2022 Water budget includes $30,000 for
replacement of the roof. Shane stated that, if awarded, the budget will
need to be revised to cover the additional costs. Shane noted that the
Water Department’s reserve fund has adequate funds in place to cover the
balance of the project.
67-22
Council Member Holland moved approval of the bid from Winkler Roofing,
Inc. from Sioux City, IA in the amount of $58,700. Council Member Hellwege
seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor Collier-Wise declared
the motion adopted.
B. Fuel Quotes
Katie Redden, Finance Officer, read the monthly fuel quote
recommended the low quote of Jerry’s Service on Items 1, 2, and 3.

and

Item 1 - 4,350 gal unleaded 10% ethanol: Jerry’s Service $3.59;
Item 2 – 3,000 gal No. 1 & 2 Diesel fuel dyed average price: Jerry’s
Service $3.50;
Item 3 - 1,000 gal No. 1 & 2 diesel fuel-clear average price: Jerry’s
Service $3.78.
68-22
Council Member Price moved approval of the low quotes of Jerry’s Service
on Items 1, 2, and 3. Council Member Holland seconded the motion. Motion
carried 8 to 0. Mayor Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
10. City Manager's Report
A. John noted that the City Council and County Commission will have a
joint meeting on Tuesday, March 8th at 5:30 p.m. in the City Council
Chambers to consider two ordinances for the Joint Jurisdiction Zoning
Area. One ordinance is to allow grain terminal/grain processing and
agribusiness as a conditional use in the Light Industrial district. The
second ordinance is to allow telecommunications towers as a conditional
use in the Agricultural district.
B. John noted that the City Planning and Zoning Commission will meet on
Monday, March 14, 2022 at 5:30 p.m. in the John “Jack” Powell Conference
Room. Items on the agenda include a Conditional Use Permit for a twinhome
on Rockwell Trail in Bliss Pointe.
C. John stated that there is a Joint Powers Board meeting on Thursday,
March 17th at 5:30 p.m. in Yankton.
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D. John stated that there is a Library Board meeting on Friday, March
18th at Noon at the Library.
E. John noted that petition packets for one of the five City Council
seats are available in the City Finance Office. Petitions are due by 5:00
p.m. on Tuesday, March 29, 2022. The municipal election will be on
Tuesday, June 7, 2022.
F. John noted a Raffle notification: The USD Law Public Interest Network
(PIN) will be selling raffle tickets on March 31, 2022 at their event at
the Old Lumber Company. The tickets are $5 each or 3 for $10. It is a
50/50 drawing. Half of the proceeds will go to PIN to help with their
efforts to educate about public interest law and supports going into
public interest legal careers. The winner will receive the other half of
the proceeds.
Council Member Ward asked John if the meeting on March 8th is due to the
Myron public hearing we had last year. John noted that this is, but Myron
has not filed a petition, that the city knows of, to rezone his property.
Council Member Price asked John what the process is now that there is a
vacancy on the Council. John noted that there are three things that could
happen when a vacancy occurs on the Council. One is to hold a special
election, but with the notice of vacancy being posted before this current
vacancy there cannot be a special election. Second, the mayor could
recommend a replacement and the Council would vote to appoint the new
member or not. Third, the Council could choose to leave the position open
until the end of its term at the first meeting in July. Mayor CollierWise stated that the Council could wait till the end of the month to see
if there was a single petition turned in for the ward and if there is no
election to be held, they could appoint that person or if there are more
than one petition, they can wait till the term ends and the election
decides who the next Council member is.
PAYROLL ADDITIONS AND CHANGES
Police Admin: Robin Hower $25.00/hr; Ambulance: Kayla Kloucek $14.70/FTO
hr; Recreation: Teja Torrez $10.00/hr; Water: Brian Hamilton $20.84/hr
11. Invoices Payable
69-22
Council Member Price moved approval of the following invoices:
AARON HAMMER
AMAZON BUSINESS
ANDREW WICKRE

TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTS
ADJ RISER WORKSTATION/SUPPLIES
SAFETY BOOTS/RAIN GEAR REIMBUR.

11

235.36
288.43
204.98

APPEARA
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES
AXLES & GEARS, INC
BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING
BLUFFS GOLF COURSE
BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC
BRIAN HAMILTON
BROADCASTER PRESS
CAPITAL ONE
CATHY NELSON
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC
CHAMBERLAIN OIL CO
CITY OF VERMILLION
CITY OF VERMILLION
CLAY RURAL WATER SYSTEM
COAST TO COAST SOLUTIONS
COLLABORATIVE SUMMER LIBRARY
COLONIAL LIFE ACC INS.
CORE & MAIN LP
COYOTE CHEMICAL COMPANY
CREDIT COLLECTIONS BUREAU
DAKOTA BEVERAGE
DAKOTA PC WAREHOUSE
DAKOTA PUMP & CONTROL CO.
DELTA DENTAL PLAN
DENNIS MARTENS
DGR ENGINEERING
DUBOIS CHEMICALS
ED M. FELD EQPT CO
ELECTRONIC ENGINEERING
EPG COMPANIES, INC
ERIC McPHERSON
ERICKSON SOLUTIONS GROUP
FAST AUTO GLASS
FEDEX.
FOREMAN MEDIA
FRONTIER PRECISION, INC
GRAHAM TIRE CO.
GREGG PETERS
GREGG PETERS
HARTINGTON TREE LLC
HEIMAN FIRE EQUIPMENT
IMS ALLIANCE

SHOP TOWELS
UNIFORM CLEANING
PARTS
BOOKS
ACCOUNTS REC
SUPPLIES
MEALS REIMBURSEMENT
ADVERTISING
SUPPLIES
REFUND REC PROGRAM FEES
DOCKING STATIONS/DIGITIZER PENS
HYDRANT OIL
COPIES/POSTAGE
UTILITY BILLS
WATER USAGE
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES
INSURANCE
SUPPLIES
DAKOTA WASH
COMMISSION
MERCHANDISE
INK CARTRIDGES
PUMP
INSURANCE
MAINTENANCE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
SODA ASH
FIRE FIGHTER EQUIPMENT
BATTERY
WHEELED SUMP PUMP DRAINER
BOOTS REIMBURSMENT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
REPAIRS
SHIPPING
COUNCIL MEETINGS
REPAIRS
TIRES
SUBSCRIPTION REIMBURSEMENT
RENT
TREE TRIMMING
REPAIRS
NAME TAGS
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45.00
629.78
150.00
206.70
100.00
1,806.56
136.00
170.00
850.92
20.00
1,014.47
665.29
992.10
36,737.85
50.60
67.45
72.90
3,130.72
1,268.02
190.00
247.80
4,128.58
44.98
8,191.59
6,143.28
833.34
6,758.80
14,641.00
6,688.00
128.70
6,078.63
600.50
1,179.60
451.83
15.60
100.00
1,093.34
112.00
1,836.00
937.50
600.00
557.95
43.50

INGRAM
INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CTR
JACKS UNIFORM & EQPT
JERRY'S CHEVROLET BUICK GM
JOHN A CONKLING DIST.
JOHNSON BROTHERS OF SD
JOHNSON CONTROLS
JONES FOOD CENTER
LEISURE LAWNS, LLC
LONGS PROPANE INC
M & T FIRE AND SAFETY INC
MALLOY ELECTRIC
MARK CLARK
MARKET STREET RENTALS
MATHESON TRI-GAS, INC
MEDLINE INDUSTRIES, INC
MICRO MARKETING LLC
MIDWEST RADIATOR & EXHAUST
MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION
MOBOTREX MOBILITY & TRAFFIC
MOTOROLA INC
NAT FIRE PROTECTION ASSOC
NETSYS+
NORTH CENTRAL AMBUL SALES
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
PCC, INC
PHELPS
POMPS TIRE SERVICE, INC.
POWERPHONE, INC
PREMIER SAFETY
PRESSING MATTERS
QUALITY CLEANING & DISASTER
RDO EQUIPMENT CO
REDI TOWING
REEL SHARP
REPUBLIC NATIONAL DISTR
RUNNING SUPPLY, LLC
SANFORD HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL
SANFORD USD MEDICAL CENTER
SCHAEFFER MFG. CO
SD DEPT OF HEALTH
SD DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

BOOKS
BATTERY
UNIFORM
PARTS
MERCHANDISE
MERCHANDISE
REPAIRS
SUPPLIES
LAWN APPLICATIONS
PROPANE
FIRE FIGHTER EQUIPMENT
MOTORS
TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTS
REPAIRS REIMBURSEMENT
MEDICAL OXYGEN
SUPPLIES
BOOKS
PARTS
PARTS
REPAIRS
RADIOS/REMOTE SPEAKER/CHARGERS
SUBSCRIPTION/DUES
SERVER/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PARTS
PARTS
MAINTENANCE
COMMISSION
WORK SHIRTS
TIRES
MAINTENANCE
RENTAL
SEASON PASSES
CARPET CLEANING
PARTS
TOWING
SHARPENING
MERCHANDISE
SUPPLIES
TESTING
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES
TESTING
TELETYPE SERVICES
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2,056.06
134.95
704.80
216.25
2,341.95
14,771.72
1,682.92
412.95
1,117.97
30.00
7,102.00
892.84
1,544.47
519.72
614.37
6.41
100.00
479.98
142.49
2,198.00
24,930.26
1,520.50
11,868.00
2,770.23
27.68
1,354.32
2,523.69
3,232.56
2,049.60
239.70
1,034.28
43.66
850.00
455.48
675.00
2,299.49
11,133.72
646.79
837.00
405.50
1,462.00
150.00
3,590.00

SD REDBOOK FUND
SD RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SECURITY SHREDDING SERVICE
SERVICE MASTER OF SE SD
SHOT SCOPE
SOUTHERN GLAZER'S OF SD
STAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT
STERN OIL CO.
STEWART OIL-TIRE CO
STRYKER SALES CORPORATION
STURDEVANTS AUTO PARTS
SYNCB/AMAZON
THE LUMBERYARD LLC
THREAD & INK
TOUR EDGE GOLF MFG, INC
TRIVIEW COMMUNICATIONS
TWO WAY SOLUTIONS
UNITED WAY
UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
US POSTMASTER
UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO.
VAST BROADBAND
VERIZON WIRELESS
VERMEER HIGH PLAINS
VERMILLION ACE HARDWARE
VERM AREA COMMUNITY FNDN
VERM CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
VISA/FIRST BANK & TRUST
WEBSTER SCALE, INC
WESCO DISTRIBUTION, INC
YANKTON FIRE & SAFETY
ZIEGLER INC

SUBSCRIPTION
CONTRIBUTIONS
SHREDDING
CUSTODIAL
MERCHANDISE
MERCHANDISE
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES
REPAIRS
SUPPLIES
PARTS
BOOKS/DVDS/SUPPLIES
MATERIALS
SHIRTS
MERCHANDISE
HANDSET/CORD
CHARGER
CONTRIBUTIONS
INSURANCE
POSTAGE FOR UTILITY BILLS
PARTS
E911 CIRCUIT
CELL PHONES/IPAD ACCESS
REPAIRS
SUPPLIES
REGISTRATION
VERMILLION BUCKS/ADVERTISING
TRAVEL/SUPPLIES
HANGAR TAXILANE IMPROVEMENTS
SUPPLIES
EXTINGUISHER INSPECTION
PARTS

300.00
58,105.86
35.00
3,827.04
520.00
5,653.02
960.02
172.39
639.95
1,119.48
815.63
753.34
90.73
226.00
290.50
47.33
391.95
661.60
1,486.49
900.00
3,702.60
1,365.50
2,678.67
879.18
970.73
180.00
1,035.00
11,098.13
13,390.00
2,229.18
40.00
300.22

Council Member Ward seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor
Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
12. Consensus Agenda
A. Set a public hearing on March 21st, 2022 for a Medical Cannabis
Dispensary Licenses for Dakota Natural Growers, Inc. at 907 N. Norbeck
Street
B. Set a public hearing on March 21st, 2022 for a Medical Cannabis
Dispensary Licenses for Dakota Herb, LLC. at 112 E Main Street
14

70-22
Council Member Price moved approval of the consensus agenda. Council
Member Hellwege seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor
Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
13. Adjourn
71-22
Council Member Ward moved to adjourn the Council Meeting at 7:49 p.m.
Council Member Price seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor
Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 7th day of March, 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor
ATTEST:
BY___________________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer
Published once at the approximate cost of ___________.
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Unapproved Minutes
Council Special Joint Meeting with County Commissioners
March 8, 2022
Tuesday 5:30 p.m.
The special Joint Meeting with Clay County Commissioners and the
Vermillion City Council, City of Vermillion, South Dakota was held on
Tuesday, March 8, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. at the City Hall Council Chambers.
1. Roll Call
Present: Hellwege, Humphrey, Jennewein, Price, Ward, Mayor Collier-Wise
Absent: Holland, Letellier,
2. Adoption of Agenda
72-22
Council Member Price moved approval of the agenda. Council Member
Humphrey seconded the motion. Motion carried 6 to 0. Mayor Collier-Wise
declared the motion adopted.
3. Visitors to be Heard - None
4. Public Hearing
A. Second Reading of Ordinance 1454 to amend the 2012 Joint Zoning
Regulations for Clay County and the City of Vermillion by Amending
Chapter 6 LI: Light Industrial District, Purpose; Section 6.02
Conditional Uses; and Section 6.02 Applicable Standards
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that, on December 27, 2021, the
City and County Planning Commissions met jointly to discuss possible
changes to the LI: Light Industrial District (LI District) of the Joint
Zoning Regulations for Clay County and the City of Vermillion. Jose
stated that the proposed changes were due to a recent rezoning request
for land in the Joint Jurisdictional Zoning Area where the request was
seeking to make an existing use conforming. Jose noted that, although
the rezoning request was later withdrawn by the applicant, the County
and the City were willing to consider amendments to the zoning ordinance
to allow the existing use within the LI: Light Industrial District. Jose
noted that, if the amendments were to be adopted, the owner would then
be able to request the property, or parts of it, to be rezoned into the
LI District to make the current use conforming.
Jose stated that the City Planning and Zoning Commission considered this
item at a Joint meeting with the Clay County Planning Commission on
1

January 24, 2022 and they unanimously recommended that the City Council
adopt the proposed amendment. Jose noted that the Joint Jurisdictional
Zoning Area (JJZA) was created by the County and the City in 2012 and
the zoning ordinance was created with the intent to allow the County and
the City to each have a say in existing and proposed land uses in an
area that would directly impact the City’s growth. Jose stated that the
JJZA tries to maintain the rural characteristics of the surrounding area
while allowing for some light development. Jose noted that the
ordinance’s intent, based on the adopted comprehensive plan for the JJZA,
is to direct development towards areas within City limits, or areas that
can be annexed by the City and serviced with municipal infrastructure.
Jose noted that the proposed amendments to the LI District include “grain
terminal/grain processing” and “agribusiness” uses as conditional uses.
Jose stated that these two changes would allow for additional
agricultural uses to be possible in the LI District. Jose noted that the
statement describing the purpose of the district would be amended by
removing portions from the second sentence and this change would better
describe the uses that are not allowed in the LI District.
Jose noted that the first reading of the ordinance by the City Council
occurred on February 7, 2022. Jose noted that, at that meeting, the City
Council approved the first reading and moved for the second reading to
be considered at a joint meeting. Jose stated that the County Commission
had first reading of the ordinance on February 22, 2022.
73-22
Second reading of title to Ordinance No. 1454, entitled AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING THE 2012 JOINT ZONING REGULATIONS FOR CLAY COUNTY AND THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, CHAPTER 6 LI: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT for the City of
Vermillion, South Dakota.
Mayor Collier-Wise read the title to the above named Ordinance, and
Council Member Hellwege moved adoption of the following:
BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes of this meeting shall show that the title
to the proposed Ordinance No. 1454 entitled AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
2012 JOINT ZONING REGULATIONS FOR CLAY COUNTY AND THE CITY OF VERMILLION,
CHAPTER 6 LI: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT was first read and the Ordinance
considered substantially in its present form and content at a regularly
called meeting of the Governing Body on the 7th day of February, 2022
and that the title was again read at this meeting, being a regularly
called meeting of the Governing Body on this 8th day of March, 2022 at
the City Hall Council Chambers in the manner prescribed by SDCL 9-19-7
as amended.
BE IT RESOLVED and ordained that said Ordinance be adopted to read as
follows:
2

ORDINANCE 1454
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2012 JOINT ZONING REGULATIONS FOR CLAY COUNTY
AND THE CITY OF VERMILLION, CHAPTER 6 LI: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT.
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, South
Dakota that Chapter 6 LI: Light Industrial District for the Joint Zoning
Jurisdiction Area of Clay County and the City of Vermillion be amended
by modifying the “Purpose” of the district and including “Grain
Terminal/Grain Processing” and “Agribusiness” uses as conditional uses.
All other portions of Chapter 6 LI: Light Industrial District will remain
as they are. Following is the amendment:
Purpose of district:
The purpose of this district is to provide for a number of light
manufacturing, wholesale, warehousing, and service uses in an attractive
industrial park like setting. These uses do not include residences,
apartments, or commercial uses, which are primarily retail in nature. It
is the intent of this district to provide high amenity industrial
development along the major roads, while allowing for slightly heavier
development in the interior of the industrial areas. The LI Light
Industrial District, where permitted, shall generally be located where
provisions can be made to adequately handle the sewage disposal, where
the value of the land for agricultural use is marginal, and where the
water supply, roads, and emergency services are easily and economically
available.
6.02 Conditional Uses
Conditional Uses
Applicable
Standards
Grain Terminal/Grain
11.01, 11.03, 11.04, 11.05, 16.01
Processing
Agribusiness

11.01, 11.03, 11.04, 11.05, 16.01

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 8th day of March 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY__________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor
ATTEST:
BY______________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer
Adoption of the Ordinance was seconded by Council Member Ward. Thereafter
the question of the adoption of the Ordinance was put to a roll call
3

vote of the Governing Body, and the members voted as follows: HellwegeY, Humphrey-Y, Jennewein-Y, Price-Y, Ward-Y, Mayor Collier-Wise-Y.
Motion carried 6 to 0. Mayor Collier-Wise declared that the Ordinance
has been adopted and directed publication thereof as required by law.
B. Second Reading of Ordinance 1455 to amend the 2012 Joint Zoning
Regulations for Clay County and the City of Vermillion by Amending
Chapter 3 A-1: Agricultural District; Section 3.02 Conditional Uses; and
Section 3.02 Applicable Standards
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that, on December 27, 2021, the
City and County Planning Commissions met jointly to discuss possible
changes to the A-1: Agricultural District (A-1 District) of the Joint
Zoning Regulations for Clay County and the City of Vermillion. Jose noted
that the proposed changes would correct an error found recently in the
A-1 District that accidentally excluded “telecommunications tower” use.
Jose stated that the City Planning and Zoning Commission considered this
item at a joint meeting with the Clay County Planning Commission on
January 24, 2022. Jose noted that, at that meeting following the public
hearing, the City’s Planning and Zoning Commission voted to unanimously
recommend that the City Council adopt the proposed amendment.
Jose stated that the Joint Jurisdictional Zoning Area (JJZA) was created
by the County and the City in 2012 and the zoning ordinance was created
with the intent to allow the County and the City to each have input in
existing and proposed land uses in an area that would directly impact
the City’s growth. Jose noted that the JJZA tries to maintain the rural
characteristics of the surrounding area, while allowing for some light
development. Jose stated that the proposed amendment to the A-1 District
will include “telecommunications tower” as a conditional use. Jose noted
that staff believes that the exclusion of this use from this district in
the original adoption of the JJZA zoning ordinance was in error since
another similar use is already found as a conditional use in this district
(e.g., “broadcast tower”).
Jose noted that the first reading of the ordinance by the City Council
occurred on February 7, 2022. Jose noted that, at that meeting, the City
Council approved the first reading and moved for the second reading to
be considered at a joint meeting. Jose stated that the County Commission
had first reading of the ordinance on February 22, 2022.
74-22
Second reading of title to Ordinance No 1455, entitled AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING THE 2012 JOINT ZONING REGULATIONS FOR CLAY COUNTY AND THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, CHAPTER 6 LI: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT for the City of
Vermillion, South Dakota.
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Mayor Collier-Wise read the title to the above named Ordinance, and
Council Member Price moved adoption of the following:
BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes of this meeting shall show that the title
to the proposed Ordinance No, 1454 entitled AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
2012 JOINT ZONING REGULATIONS FOR CLAY COUNTY AND THE CITY OF VERMILLION,
CHAPTER 3 A-1: AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT was first read and the Ordinance
considered substantially in its present form and content at a regularly
called meeting of the Governing Body on the 7th day of February, 2022
and that the title was again read at this meeting, being a regularly
called meeting of the Governing Body on this 8th day of March, 2022 at
the City Hall Council Chambers in the manner prescribed by SDCL 9-19-7
as amended.
BE IT RESOLVED and ordained that said Ordinance be adopted to read as
follows:
ORDINANCE 1455
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2012 JOINT ZONING REGULATIONS FOR CLAY COUNTY
AND THE CITY OF VERMILLION, CHAPTER 3 A-1: AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT.
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, South
Dakota that Chapter 3 A-1: Agricultural District for the Joint Zoning
Jurisdiction area of Clay County and the City of Vermillion be amended
by including “telecommunications tower” use as a conditional use. All
other portions of Chapter 3 A-1: Agricultural District will remain as
they are. Following is the amendment:
11.02

Conditional Uses

Conditional Uses
Applicable Standards
Telecommunications
11.01, 11.03, 11.05, 11.08, 16.01
Tower
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 8th day of March 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor
ATTEST:
BY______________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer
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Adoption of the Ordinance was seconded by Council Member Ward. Thereafter
the question of the adoption of the Ordinance was put to a roll call
vote of the Governing Body, and the members voted as follows: HellwegeY, Humphrey-Y, Jennewein-Y, Price-Y, Ward-Y, Mayor Collier-Wise-Y.
Motion carried 6 to 0. Mayor Collier-Wise declared that the Ordinance
has been adopted and directed publication thereof as required by law.
5. Adjourn
75-22
Council Member Hellwege moved to adjourn the Council special session at
5:36 p.m. Council Member Ward seconded the motion. Motion carried 6 to
0. Mayor Collier-Wise declared the motion adopted.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 8 day of March, 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor
ATTEST:
BY___________________________________
Katie E Redden, Finance Officer
Published once at the approximate cost of ___________.
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PROCLAMATION

INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES AWARENESS MONTH
WHEREAS, individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities, their families, friends,
neighbors, and co-workers encourage everyone to focus on the abilities of all people; and
WHEREAS, the most effective way to increase this awareness is through everyone's active
participation in community activities and the openness to learn and acknowledge each individuals'
contribution; and
WHEREAS, opportunities for citizens with intellectual and developmental disabilities to function as
independently and productively as possible must be fostered in our community; and
WHEREAS, individuals with developmental disabilities deserve full access to education, housing,
employment, and recreational activities; and
WHEREAS, we encourage all citizens to support opportunities for individuals with intellectual and
developmental disabilities in our community including full access to education, housing,
employment, and recreational activities; and
WHEREAS, individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities deserve nothing less.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED we, the governing body of the City of Vermillion, South
Dakota, do hereby proclaim the month of March 2022, as
INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES AWARENESS MONTH
in Vermillion, South Dakota, and call upon the residents of this great city to join in observing this
month by hosting and supporting initiatives and activities that support and promote providing
employment opportunities for people with disabilities.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 21st day of March 2022.
FOR THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
By ___________________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor
ATTEST:
By ________________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer

605.677.7050 605.677.5461 (fax) www.vermillion.us 25 Center Street Vermillion, SD
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6. Public Hearing; item a

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Katie Redden, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Application for funding from the South Dakota DANR for financial assistance
for wastewater improvements for the Tom Street Lift

Presenter: Sophie Johnson of SECOG and Katie Redden
Background: The 2022 budget includes funding for the Tom Street Lift Station
improvements. To assist with funding these projects, the city is applying for grants and
loans in addition to using City reserve funds. The South Eastern Council of Governments
(SECOG) is assisting the City with the water plan application and grant/loan application.
The first step was to have the project placed on the Department of Agriculture and Natural
Resources (DANR) State Water Plan, which was approved by the DANR Board in
November of 2020. The grant/loan application is due by March 31, 2022 for consideration
at the next DANR Board meeting. A requirement of the grant/loan program is to conduct
a public hearing to explain the funding for the project and accept any public input on the
project. The public hearing was advertised for tonight’s meeting.
Discussion: The Tom Street Lift Station improvements will include relocation and full
replacement of the lift station, wet well, and all associated equipment. The current plan is
to relocate the lift and wet well from the City right of way to private property that the City
is in the process of purchasing. A combination of American Rescue Plan Act allocations,
SRF loan, and local reserves will be used to fund the application. The budget for the project
is attached.
Financial Consideration: The cost at this point is the advertising fee for the notice of
public hearing.
Conclusion/Recommendations: The public hearing is a time to explain the financing of
the project and accept public input with no action required of the City Council. Under
New Business is a resolution authorizing the application for financial assistance for the
project.

Budget Sheet

Cost Classification

A

B

C

CWSRF/
CWFCP

Local ARPA
Match

D

E
Total
Funds

1. Administrative Expenses
A. Personal Services
B. Travel
C. Legal & Bond Counsel
D. Other SECOG

$4,000

$4,000

A. Bidding and Design Fees

$56,100

$56,100

B. Project Inspection Fees

$56,100

$56,100

$2,000

$2,000

2. Land, Structure, Right-of-Way
3. Engineering

C. Other Testing
4. Construction & Improvements

$315,000

$450,000

$765,000

9. Subtotal (Lines 1-8)

$433,200

$450,000

$883,200

10. Contingencies

$191,800

11. Total (Lines 9 and 10)

$625,000

$450,000

58.14%

41.86%

5. Equipment
6. Contractual Services
7. Other
8. Other

12. Total %

$191,800
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$1,075,000
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

100.00%

6. Public Hearing; item b

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Medical Cannabis Cultivation Facility at 907 N Norbeck Street

Presenter: Katie Redden
Background: An application was received for a Medical Cannabis Dispensary license from
Dakota Natural Growers at 907 N. Norbeck Street. The notice of hearing is included in the
packet. The City Medical Cannabis Dispensary license is for one calendar year and expires
December 31, 2022. Dakota Natural Growers already has a City Medical Cultivation
License for calendar 2022.
Discussion: The City Council has the ability to issue licenses pursuant to the SDCL
Chapter 34-20G and Chapter 123 of City Code. Dakota Natural Growers has provided all
necessary information, and staff have reviewed the application. The Medical Cannabis
Dispensary license will allow dispensing of medical cannabis within City limits. A Medical
Cannabis Dispensary is considered an allowed use in the following districts: GB General
Business District (retail services and trade), GI General Industrial District (retail services
and trade), and CB Central Business District (retail services and trade).
As is noted in the Police Chief’s report, the background checks have come back from the
DCI and FBI. Chief Betzen has stated that the eight (8) applicants did not have any
disqualifying felony charges per City Ordinance, State, or Federal Statute.
Dakota Natural Growers will also have to apply for a state license and be approved before
they can operate their Dispensary in the State of South Dakota. The State requires the City
to approve the license before they will consider the application for a State license.
Financial Consideration: This additional license fee is $5,000, which is retained by the
City. A Medical Cultivation License for Dakota Natural Growers was considered and
approved at the December 6, 2021 regular meeting. Dakota Natural Growers paid the
$11,695 initial licensing fee for a 2022 license at that time.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Following input from the public hearing, the City Council
is asked to approve or deny a Medical Cannabis Dispensary license for Dakota Natural

6. Public Hearings; item d

Growers at 907 N Norbeck Street. If a motion is made to deny the license, the reason must
be included in the motion.

6. Public Hearing; item c

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Medical Cannabis Cultivation Facility at 112 E Main Street

Presenter: Katie Redden
Background: An application was received for a Medical Cannabis Dispensary license from
Dakota Herb for 112 E Main Street. The notice of hearing is included in the packet. The
Medical Cannabis Dispensary license is for one calendar year and would expire December
31, 2022.
Discussion: The City Council has the ability to issue licenses pursuant to the SDCL
Chapter 34-20G and Chapter 123 of City Code. Dakota Herb has provided all necessary
information, and staff have reviewed the application. The Medical Cannabis Dispensary
license will allow dispensing of medical cannabis within City limits. A Medical Cannabis
Dispensary is considered an allowed use in the following districts: GB General Business
District (retail services and trade), GI General Industrial District (retail services and trade),
and CB Central Business District (retail services and trade).
As is noted in the Police Chief’s report, two of the four background checks have come back
from the DCI, none have come back from the FBI. Chief Betzen has stated that two (2)
applicants did not have any disqualifying felony charge per City Ordinance or State Statute.
The other two background checks have not come back yet from DCI or FBI.
Dakota Herb will also have to apply for a state license and be approved before they can
operate their Dispensary in the State of South Dakota. The State requires the City to
approve the license before they will consider the application for a State license.
Financial Consideration: The license fee is $11,695, which is retained by the City. If
approved, the license will expire on December 31, 2022.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Following input from the public hearing, the City Council
is asked to approve or deny a Medical Cannabis Dispensary license for Dakota Herb at 112
E Main Street. If a motion is made to deny the license, the reason must be included in the
motion.

7. Old Business; item a

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Ordinance 1457 – Amending Title XV, Land Usage; Chapter 155, Zoning
Regulations; Section 155.008, Definitions, to amend the term “Kennel”

Presenter:

Jose Dominguez

Background: In November 2021, the City received a request for the construction of a
kennel within the GB General Business district. After reviewing the zoning ordinance to
ensure that the use was allowed, it was discovered that “kennels” are not allowed within
General Business zoning district as a stand-alone use. The only way a “kennel” is allowed
is in conjunction with veterinary clinics.
At the February 14, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission) meeting, staff
was directed to commence City initiated zoning amendments. The zoning amendments
would modify the definition of the word “kennel” and would place “kennels” as conditional
uses in the GI General Industrial and GB General Business districts.
Discussion: The current Zoning Ordinance was adopted in 2019. This zoning ordinance
amended the 2008 zoning ordinance. The 2008 ordinance included “kennels” as a
conditional use in the GB General Business district. The original use required that
“kennels” be no closer than 1,000 feet to residential uses. The separation distance was
reduced in 2012 from 1,000 feet to 150 feet. The latest adoption of the zoning ordinance
does not include “kennels” as a stand-alone use. Staff was not able to find any reference
regarding the removal of the use within any Commission or City Council minutes.
At the February 28, 2022 Commission meeting, staff proposed that the definition of
“kennel” be amended with a new sentence that would read “Animals may be kept for a
month at a time.” At the public hearing the Commission amended Staff’s proposal to read
“Animals may be kept for a maximum of 30 days at a time.” The Commission unanimously
recommended that the City Council approve the amendment to the definition of “kennel”
as proposed by the Commission. The City Council approved first reading of Ordinance
1457 at the March 7, 2022 meeting. No changes have been made to the ordinance since the
first reading.

7. Old Business; item a

Financial Consideration: The costs incurred by the City up to this point have been
advertising the public hearing. Future costs will include publishing the minutes of the City
Council meetings.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the second
reading of Ordinance 1457. A roll call vote is required with the second reading of an
ordinance.

ORDINANCE 1457
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF VERMILLION CODE OF ORDINANCES
TITLE XV, LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 155, ZONING REGULATIONS, SECTION
155.008, DEFINITIONS, AMENDING THE TERM “KENNEL”.
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota that the
following section of Chapter 155 be amended by adding to the following verbiage to the existing
definition of “KENNEL”. All other portions of section 155.008 will remain as they are. Following
is the amendment:
§155.008 DEFINITIONS.
Kennel. Any premise, or portion thereof, where dogs, cats, and other household pets are
maintained, boarded, bred, or cared for, in return for remuneration, or are kept for the purpose of
sale. Animals may be kept for a maximum of 30 days at a time.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 21st day of March 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor

ATTEST:
BY______________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer
First Reading:
Second Reading:
Published:
Effective:

March 7, 2022
March 21, 2022
April 1, 2022
April 21, 2022

7. Old Business; item b

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Ordinance 1459 – Amending Title XV, Land Usage; Chapter 155, Zoning
Regulations; Section 155.037, GB General Business District, (B) Conditional
Uses, to include “Kennel” as a Conditional Use

Presenter:

Jose Dominguez

Background: In November 2021, the City received a request for the construction of a
kennel within the GB General Business district. After reviewing the zoning ordinance to
ensure that the use was allowed, it was discovered that “kennels” are not allowed within
General Business zoning district as a stand-alone use. The only way a “kennel” is allowed
is in conjunction with veterinary clinics.
At the February 14, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission) meeting, Staff
was directed to commence City initiated zoning amendments. The zoning amendments
would modify the definition of the word “kennel” and would place “kennels” as conditional
uses in the GI General Industrial and GB General Business districts.
Discussion: The current Zoning Ordinance was adopted in 2019. This zoning ordinance
amended the 2008 zoning ordinance. The 2008 ordinance included “kennels” as a
conditional use in the GB General Business district. The original use required that
“kennels” be no closer than 1,000 feet to residential uses. The distance was reduced in
2012 from 1,000 feet to 150 feet. The latest adoption of the zoning ordinance does not
include “kennels” as a stand-alone use. Staff was not able to find any reference regarding
the removal of the use within any Commission or City Council minutes.
This amendment is Staff’s proposal to place kennels as a conditional use in the GB General
Business district. Besides allowing kennels as conditional uses, the amendment will also
require that kennels be at least 150 feet away from residential districts. This would be
measured from building to building. It should be noted that “Small Animal Veterinarians”
are also a conditional use within the General Business district. This use also includes
kenneling, and they also have the same distance restriction.
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On a later agenda item being discussed at this meeting, Staff will be asking the City Council
to consider placing “Kennel” as a conditional use in the GI General Industrial district. If
both amendments are adopted, the available locations to start a kenneling business will be
greatly increased.
The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item at their February 28, 2022
meeting. At that meeting, the Commission unanimously recommended that the City
Council adopt the ordinance as presented. The City Council approved first reading of
Ordinance 1459 at the March 7, 2022 meeting. No changes have been made to the
ordinance since the first reading.
Financial Consideration: The costs incurred by the City up to this point have been
advertising the public hearing. Future costs will include publishing the minutes of the City
Council meetings.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the second
reading of Ordinance 1459. A roll call vote is required with the second reading of an
ordinance.

ORDINANCE 1459
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF VERMILLION CODE OF ORDINANCES
TITLE XV, LAND USAGE; CHAPTER 155, ZONING REGULATIONS; SECTION
155.037, GB GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, (B) CONDITIONAL USES, TO INCLUDE
“KENNEL” AS A CONDITIONAL USE.
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota that the
following section of Chapter 155 be amended by including “Kennel” use as a conditional use. All
other portions of section 155.037 (B) will remain as they are. Following is the amendment:
§155.037 GB GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT
(B) CONDITIONAL USES.
Kennel

Conditional Use

Applicable Standards
Located 150 feet from residential district area.
(measured from the closest point of the outside
walls of both structures)
§§ 155.070, 155.072, 155.073, 155.077,
155.095(A)

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 21st day of March, 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor

ATTEST:
BY______________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer
First Reading:
Second Reading:
Published:
Effective:

March 7, 2022
March 21, 2022
April 1, 2022
April 21, 2022

7. Old Business; item c

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Ordinance 1458 – Amending Title XV, Land Usage; Chapter 155, Zoning
Regulations; Section 155.039, GI General Industrial District, (B) Conditional
Uses, to include “Kennel” as a Conditional Use

Presenter:

Jose Dominguez

Background: In November 2021, the City received a request for the construction of a
kennel within the GB General Business district. After reviewing the zoning ordinance to
ensure that the use was allowed, it was discovered that “kennels” are not allowed within
General Business zoning district as a stand-alone use. The only way a “kennel” is allowed
is in conjunction with veterinary clinics.
At the February 14, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission) meeting, Staff
was directed to commence City initiated zoning amendments. The zoning amendments
would modify the definition of the word “kennel” and would place “kennels” as conditional
uses in the GI General Industrial and GB General Business districts.
Discussion: The current Zoning Ordinance was adopted in 2019. This zoning ordinance
amended the 2008 zoning ordinance. The 2008 ordinance included “kennels” as a
conditional use in the GB General Business district. The original use had required that
“kennels” be no closer than 1,000 feet to residential uses. The distance was reduced in
2012 from 1,000 feet to 150 feet. The latest adoption of the zoning ordinance does not
include “kennels” as a stand-alone use. Staff was not able to find any reference regarding
the removal of the use within any Commission or City Council minutes.
This amendment is Staff’s proposal to place kennels as a conditional use in the GI General
Industrial district. Placing the use in this district, in addition to the GB General Business
district, will increase the location where a possible kenneling business may operate.
Besides allowing kennels as conditional uses, the amendment will also require that kennels
be at least 150 feet away from residential districts. This would be measured from building
to building.
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The Planning Commission considered this item at their February 28, 2022 meeting. At that
meeting, the Commission unanimously recommended that the City Council adopt the
ordinance as presented. The City Council approved first reading of Ordinance 1458 at the
March 7, 2022 meeting. No changes have been made to the ordinance since the first
reading.
Financial Consideration: The costs incurred by the City up to this point have been
advertising the public hearing. Future costs will include publishing the minutes to the
Council meetings.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the second
reading of Ordinance 1458. A roll call vote is required with the second reading of an
ordinance.

ORDINANCE 1458
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF VERMILLION CODE OF ORDINANCES
TITLE XV, LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 155, ZONING REGULATIONS, SECTION
155.039, GI GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, (B) CONDITIONAL USES, TO
INCLUDE “KENNEL” AS A CONDITIONAL USE.
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota that the
following section of Chapter 155 be amended by including “Kennel” as a conditional use. All other
portions of section 155.039 (B) will remain as they are. Following is the amendment:
§155.039 GI GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT
(B) CONDITIONAL USES.
Kennel

Conditional Use

Applicable Standards
Located 150 feet from residential district area.
(measured from the closest point of the outside
walls of both structures)
§§ 155.070, 155.072, 155.073, 155.077,
155.095(A)

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 21st day of March 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor

ATTEST:
BY______________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer
First Reading:
Second Reading:
Published:
Effective:

March 7, 2022
March 21, 2022
April 1, 2022
April 21, 2022

8. New Business; item a

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Stone Conley, Assistant to the City Manager

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 1460 – Amending Title XI, Business
Regulations; Chapter 114, Transportation Network Drivers and Companies;
Sections 114.02 and 114.06 Amending the Taxicab License/Application
Requirements and Requiring a Rate Card

Presenter:

Stone Conley

Background: At the April 5, 2021 noon meeting, the City Council reviewed some proposed
changes to the current Transportation Network Company (TNC) and Taxi regulations.
During this meeting the City Council provided direction on this topic. Staff began
researching but it was delayed overall. At the March 7, 2022 Noon meeting, the City
Council reviewed the proposed changes to TNC and Taxicab regulations and expressed
interest in moving the item forward.
Discussion: The current Taxi regulation was originally implemented in 1975 and last
amended in 2019 to add TNCs. This proposed amendment in the regulations of TNC and
Taxi businesses would modify requirements for owners, operators, agents, and employees.
These requirements are an address of the storage location of all fleet vehicles. If the
location ceases use, the company must notify the City within five business days. A signed
DCI and FBI statement alongside background checks ensuring that none of those in the
application were convicted of any state or municipal driving or vehicle-related petty
offense or class 2 misdemeanor violations within the last three (3) years or convicted of
any class 1 misdemeanor or felony or non-driving municipal ordinance within the last
seven (7) years, the nature of the offense(s), and the punishment or penalty assessed
therefor must be provided to the City. It would also be required for all new employees
hired after the initial licensing installation to submit to FBI and DCI background checks.
In addition, each taxicab vehicle will have to keep a daily log listing date, time, trip
origination address, and trip destination address. This log must be available for inspection
upon request from the City and must be maintained for the period of one year. This
requirement mirrors what TNCs are currently required to do.
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Financial Consideration: None
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the first reading
of Proposed Ordinance 1460 amending Title XI, Business Regulations; Chapter 114,
Transportation Network Drivers and Companies; Sections 114.02(B) by adding
(4)(5)(6)(7) and 114.06 by adding (B) and renumbering (C).

PROPOSED ORDINANCE 1460
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF VERMILLION CODE OF ORDINANCES
TITLE XI, BUSINESS REGULATIONS; CHAPTER 114, SECTIONS 114.02(B)
ADDING (4)(5)(6)(7) AND SECTION 114.06 ALTERING (B) AND (C), AMENDING
THE REGULATIONS GOVERNING TRANSPORTATION NETWORK DRIVERS,
COMPANIES AND TAXICAB OPERATIONS
§ 114.02 LICENSE/APPLICATION REQUIRED TO OPERATE/AFFILIATE WITH A
BUSINESS.
(B)
Every person desiring a license to operate a taxicab business in the city shall make
application in writing to the governing body. The application shall include the following
information:
(4) The physical address where each motor vehicle is stored and maintained. If location
ceases use the city must be notified with 5 business days.
(5) A signed statement included with the DCI and FBI background checks as to whether
the applicant and each of the applicant’s owners, operators, agents, or employees has ever
caused personal injury or property damage arising from the use or operation of a motor
vehicle.
(6) A signed statement by the DCI and FBI background checks as to whether the applicant
or each of the applicant’s owners, operators, agents, or employees has been convicted of
any state or municipal driving or vehicle-related petty offense or class 2 misdemeanor
violations within the last three (3) years or convicted of any class 1 misdemeanor or felony
or non-driving municipal ordinance within the last seven (7) years, the nature of the
offense(s), and the punishment or penalty assessed therefor.
(7) A signed statement included with the DCI and FBI background checks as required in
114.02 (B)(5) and 114.02(B)(6) will be required for all applicants involved after the initial
application has been submitted.
§ 114.06 DISPLAY OF RATE CARD.
(B) Activity Log. Each taxicab vehicle must keep a daily activity log listing the date, time,
trip origination address, and trip destination address. The activity log must be available for
inspection by and upon the request of the city. The logs must be maintained by the taxicab
business for a period of one year.
(C) TNC shall present fare calculation method on their digital network.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 4th day of April 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
By________________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor
ATTEST:
By_________________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer

First Reading:
Second Reading:
Published:
Effective:

March 21, 2022
April 4, 2022
April 15, 2022
May 5, 2022

8. New Business; item b

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Stone Conley, Assistant to the City Manager

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

First Reading of Proposed Ordinance 1461 – Amending Title VII, Traffic
Code; Chapter 70, General Traffic and Parking Regulations, Section 70.072,
Prohibited in Certain Places, Clarifying language in 70.072(A)(4) and 70.072
(A)(8)

Presenter:

Stone Conley

Background: At the January 18, 2022 Noon meeting, the City Council learned more
regarding end of driveway parking. At this meeting, staff were asked to continue to
research other municipalities and find items to incorporate into the draft of the proposed
ordinance.
At the March 7, 2022 Noon meeting, staff presented the additions proposed to be added to
the ordinance. Staff was then directed to create a proposed ordinance utilizing the newly
described language.
Discussion: The current parking regulations were adopted in 1975 and last amended on
January 4, 2021. Section 70.072 Prohibited in Certain Places, is the section of code
allowing for the City to enforce parking violations. Currently, end of driveway parking is
not specifically defined or clear in the code. Proposed Ordinance 1461 would amend the
code clarifying necessary language to enforce offenses regarding end of driveway parking.
This would include the three (3) feet of either side of a public or private driveway entrance
or an alleyway access. Driveway entrance is also to include the flared end or driveway
return.
Financial Consideration: City Council was notified at the March 7, 2022 Noon meeting
of a separate resolution that will amend the City’s parking fee rate. This will be brought
forward at the April 4, 2022 Council Meeting.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the first reading
of proposed Ordinance 1461– Amending Title VII, Traffic Code; Chapter 70, General
Traffic and Parking Regulations, Section 70.072, Prohibited in Certain Places, Clarifying
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End of Driveway Parking. Administration recommends that it become effective July 1,
2022 to coincide with the upcoming fee change proposal.

PROPOSED ORDINANCE 1461
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF VERMILLION CODE OF ORDINANCES
TITLE VII, TRAFFIC CODE; CHAPTER 70, GENERAL TRAFFIC AND PARKING
REGULATIONS, SECTION 70.072, PROHIBITED IN CERTAIN PLACES, AMENDING
70.072(A)(4) AND 70.072(A)(8).
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota that the
following section of Chapter 70 be amended to clarify parking prohibited in certain places. All
other portions of section 70.072 will remain as they are. Following is the amendment:
§70.072 PROHIBITED IN CERTAIN PLACES.
(A) It shall be unlawful for the operator of a motor vehicle to stop, stand, or park the motor vehicle
in any of the following places except when necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic or in
compliance with the directions of a police officer or traffic signal or sign:
(4) Within (20) feet of the driveway entrance to any fire station and on the side of a street
opposite the entrance to any fire station with seventy-five (75) feet of said entrance, when
properly sign-posted;
(8) In front of, or on three (3) feet of either side of, a public or private driveway entrance or an
alleyway access. Driveway entrance is to include the flared end or driveway return;
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 4th day of April 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor

ATTEST:
BY______________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer
First Reading:
Second Reading:
Published:
Effective:

March 21, 2022
April 4, 2022
April 15, 2022
July 1, 2022

8. New Business; item c

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Katie E Redden, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Resolution authorizing application for financial assistance from the South
Dakota DANR for Tom Street Lift Station

Presenter: Katie Redden
Background: The 2023 budget will include the Tom Street Lift Station improvements
project at an estimated cost of $1,075,000. The project will be funded from a State
Revolving Loan (SRF), South Dakota Department of Transportation, and City Sewer Fund
reserves. There is a possibility that ARPA could provide an additional grant match, but
the guidelines are not finalized. The City Council has applied to have the project included
on the State Water Plan, which was approved by the Department of Agriculture and Natural
Resources (DANR) in November of 2020 and earlier on this agenda held a public hearing
that is required before applying to the DANR for a SRF loan.
Discussion: SECOG is assisting the city with the grant/loan applications with a deadline
for application of March 31, 2022. The grant/loan application requires the City Council, by
resolution, to authorize the application for financial assistance and designate an authorized
representative to certify and sign payment requests. The resolution designates the Mayor
or City Manager as an authorized representative to execute documents required by the
DANR for the project.
Financial Consideration: None at this time.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the resolution
authorizing the application for financial assistance and designating an authorized
representative to certify and sign payment requests for the Tom Street Lift Station
improvements.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE,
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND SUBMITTAL OF THE APPLICATION, AND
DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES TO CERTIFY AND SIGN
PAYMENT REQUESTS
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion (City) has determined it is necessary to proceed with
improvements to its sanitary sewer system, including but not limited to replacement of the Tom
Street Lift Station (Project); and
WHEREAS, the City has determined that financial assistance will be necessary to undertake the
Project and an Application for financial assistance to the South Dakota Board of Water and Natural
Resources (Board) will be prepared; and
WHEREAS, it is necessary to designate an authorized representative to execute and submit the
Application on behalf of the City and to certify and sign payment requests in the event financial
assistance is awarded for the Project.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion,
South Dakota, at a regular meeting thereof in the Council Chambers of said City at 7:00 p.m. on
the 21st day of March 2022, that the Application by the City is approved to be submitted as follows:
A. The City hereby approves the submission of an Application for financial assistance in an
amount not to exceed $1,075,000 from the Board for the Project; and
B. The Mayor or City Manager are hereby authorized to execute the Application and submit
it to the Board, and to execute and deliver such other documents and perform all acts
necessary to effectuate the Application for financial assistance; and
C. The Mayor or City Manager are hereby designated as authorized representatives of the City
to do all things on its behalf to certify and sign payment requests in the event financial
assistance is awarded for the Project.
Adopted at Vermillion, South Dakota, this 21st day of March 2022.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
By:___________________________
Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor
Attest:
By:________________________________
Katie E. Redden, Finance Officer

8. New Business; item d

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Vacate Utility Easement between Lots 8 and 9, Block 6, Bliss Pointe
Addition, City of Vermillion, Clay County, South Dakota.

Presenter:

Jose Dominguez

Background: On February 23, 2022, Mart Brothers Construction applied for a conditional
use permit for the construction of two attached single-family dwellings in the Bliss Pointe
Addition. The Planning and Zoning Commission approved the conditional use permit for
the construction of the two attached single-family dwellings at their March 14, 2022
meeting.
Besides the conditional use permit process with the City’s Planning and Zoning
Commission, the applicant would also be required to vacate a utility easement that would
be located under the new dwellings if they are constructed.
Discussion: Construction of structures is not allowed to occur over utility easements or
public rights-of-way. There is a statutory process that must be followed when vacating
public rights-of-way. However, there is nothing similar for vacating utility easements.
What the City has done in the past is to contact the utility companies to ensure that no
utilities are in the easement being vacated. After it is known that no utilities are present in
the easement, then City Council is asked to consider the vacation of the easement.
In this instance, the contractor is asking for the utility easement between Lots 8 and 9 of
Block 6 to be vacated. The contractor contacted all known utilities. None of the utilities
are located within the easement proposed to be vacated.
Financial Consideration: The City will file the document vacating the easement at the
Register of Deeds. The contractor has also paid the $150 fee for vacating rights-of-ways
and easements.
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Conclusion/Recommendations: Staff recommend approval the vacation of the utility
easement between Lots 8 & 9, Block 6, Bliss Pointe Addition, City of Vermillion, Clay
County, South Dakota.

Prepared by:
The City of Vermillion
25 Center Street
Vermillion, SD 57069
605-677-7050

TERMINATION OF EASEMENT
The City of Vermillion, South Dakota, a municipal corporation of Clay County, South Dakota, grantor in
consideration, receipt of which is acknowledged, does hereby release, terminate, and vacate unto Mart Brothers
Construction, Inc., Vermillion, South Dakota, grantee, an easement for the location, construction, installation,
maintenance, reconstruction, repair, and operation of all utilities along, over and across the following described real
property, viz:
The East 8-feet of the South 102.01-feet of the North 110.01-feet of Lot 8; and, The West 8-feet of the
South 102.01-feet of the North 110.01-feet of Lot 9; Block 6, Bliss Pointe Addition, City of Vermillion,
Clay County, South Dakota.
It is the purpose of the grantor to release, terminate, and vacate its easement over and across said premises only,
retaining said easements across other properties as shown in the subdivision plat recorded in Plat Book 8 Page 290
in the office of the Register of Deeds of Clay County, South Dakota.
Dated this _________ day of ____________________ __________.
MART BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION, INC.

THE CITY OF VERMILLION

_____________________________________

___________________________________

____________________________, ________

Kelsey Collier-Wise, Mayor

State of ________________ )
) SS.
County of ______________ )
On this _________ day of _____________, in the year ______ before me, ______________________________, a
Notary Public within and for said County and State, personally appeared __________________ authorized signatory
of Mart Brothers Construction, Inc., known to me to be the person whom described in, and executed the within and
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same.

(Seal)

____________________________________
Notary Public
My Commission Expires _______________

8. New Business; item e

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Katie Redden, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Presentation of 2021 Annual Financial Report

Presenter:

Katie Redden

Background: The annual financial report is required to be presented to the City Council
no later than the first regular meeting of May. The following state statute is applicable:
9-22-21. Annual financial report--Publication--Filing. The financial officer shall report to the
governing body no later than the first regular meeting of May of each year, the receipts, expenses and
financial condition of the municipality. The report shall include the amount of funds in the treasury at
the time the report is made and where and in what amounts the funds are deposited or invested. The
report shall be published in the official newspaper, or any other newspaper as the governing body may
direct within thirty days after the report is made to the governing body or on completion of an annual
audit. By the last day of May each year the financial officer shall file a copy of the report with the
Department of Legislative Audit.

As the City is required to have an annual audit, having the report done now allows time to
complete the balance of the comprehensive annual report and for the auditors to begin their
audit work.
Discussion: The report, as presented, is unaudited and contains only the financial section.
For the annual audit, the introductory, management discussion and analysis, footnotes, and
statistical sections contained in the comprehensive annual financial report will be
completed and included in the audited report. Upon acknowledgement of receipt by the
City Council, the required exhibits will be published and filed with the Department of
Legislative Audit. The City Council has previously approved a contract with Williams &
Company, P.C. to audit the financial statements that will be performed within the April to
June timeframe.
In the past, there have been questions on what is included in the report so attached is a more
detailed explanation of the unaudited financial statements.
Financial Consideration: The cost will be the publication of the required information.
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Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council
acknowledge receipt of the 2021 Unaudited Annual Financial Report in the official
minutes.
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From:

Katie Redden, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

2021 Unaudited Annual Financial Report additional information

Presenter:

Katie Redden

Mayor and City Council:
The 2021 unaudited annual financial report was included in your packet. The annual report is
required to be presented to the City Council by the first meeting in May. The report, as presented,
is unaudited and the City has contracted with the firm of Williams & Company to audit the
financial statements. Prior to the audit being complete, staff will complete the introductory section,
management discussion and analysis, footnotes to the financial statements, and statistical sections
as required for the comprehensive annual financial report.
There is a lot of information consolidated into this report, and the following is provided as an
explanation of the individual statements contained in the report.
Exhibits 1 and 2, contained on pages 5 and 7, are the government-wide financial statements. These
two exhibits report the City operations similar to financial reports of business entities by including
all assets, depreciation, receivables, payables, and debt. Reported on page 5 is the net position of
the City separated into columns for governmental activities, business-type activities, and total for
the City. The last column is the information of Housing and Redevelopment Authority that is
considered to be a component unit of the City as the City Council created the entity and appoints
the Board members, thus requiring their information to be included in the City’s annual report.
The information reported for the Housing and Redevelopment Authority is taken from their audited
financial statements.
Exhibit 1, on page 5, the Statement of Net Position, reports that the City has over $135 million of
assets and deferred outflows of resources ($131,405,332) plus ($4,206,045) and over $33 million
of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources ($26,895,102) plus ($6,518,193) leaving net
position of over $102 million ($102,198,082). Of the over $102 million of net position over $69
million is investment in capital assets ($69,307,319). Last year (2020) the City reported over $93
million of net position ($93,825,807), thus an increase of over $8 million ($8,372,265) in net
position for the year ended 2021.
Exhibit 2, on Page 7, the Statement of Activities, lists in the first column the expenses, followed
by columns for charges for goods and services, operating and capital grants that are received for
the corresponding expenditures. This exhibit shows the revenue and expense including
depreciation by activity and the changes in net position for governmental activities and business
type activities and a total for the City. Governmental activities net position increased by
$5,289,274 while business activities net position increased by $3,528,318 for a total increase in
the City’s net position of just over $8 million ($8,817,592). If the City was a private business, this
would be the net income for 2021. Again, as in Exhibit 1, the last column is the activities of the
Housing and Redevelopment Authority.
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Exhibit 3, on page 8, reports the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet for the individual major funds
(General Fund, Second Penny Sales Tax Fund, Stormwater Fund, Downtown Streetscape, and
Bliss Pointe Capital project fund TIF #7) and a total column for all other governmental funds. The
General Fund is considered a major fund as well as any other fund that has over 10% of the total
governmental fund assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures or 5% of the entity total assets,
liabilities, revenues or expenditures. This year, the major fund is Second Penny Sales Tax Fund,
Stormwater fund, Downtown Streetscape, and Bliss Pointe II Capital Project fund. The total other
governmental funds are made up of the 14 remaining governmental funds whose individual fund
balance sheets are reported on Exhibit A-1 on pages 26 & 27.
Exhibit 3A, on page 9, is a reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet with a fund
balance shown on page 8 of $11,228,661 to the Total Net Position reported on the Statement of
Net Position shown on page 5 of $49,959,644. The reconciliation adds in capital assets that are
not reported in governmental funds, receivables that are not available to pay current period
expenditures, prepaid expenses that are expenditures in governmental fund when paid, net assets
of internal service funds that provide services to City funds and pension related items. Reductions
are long term liabilities, accrued leave payable, accrued interest payable, bond premium, and
pension related items.
Exhibit 4, on page 10, reports the Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance for the individual major funds (General Fund, Second Penny Sales Tax Fund,
Stormwater Fund, Downtown Streetscape, and Bliss Pointe Capital project fund TIF #7) and a
total column for all other governmental funds. The total other governmental funds are made up of
the 14 remaining governmental funds whose individual fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balance are reported on Exhibit A-2 on pages 28 & 29.
Exhibit 4A, on page 11, is a reconciliation of the change in fund balance from page 10 of a decrease
of $2,321,203 to, the changes in net position shown on page 7 of $5,289,274. The reconciliation
adjusts for inventory, expenditures for capital assets, depreciation, the loss on disposal of capital
assets, payment on long term debt, change in prepaid expenses, change in accrued interest, pension
related activities and net revenue of internal service funds.
Exhibit 5, 6 & 7, on pages 12, 13 & 14, are the statements of net position, revenues and expenses
and changes in net position and statement of cash flows for the business type funds, electric, water,
wastewater, liquor, golf, Joint Powers, and curbside recycling. The last column is the total of the
internal service funds made up of the copier, fax, postage fund, unemployment insurance fund,
equipment replacement fund and custodial fund (the individual internal service fund activity is
reported on page 35, 36, & 37).
Exhibit 5, on page 12, titled Statement of Net Position, reports for the individual proprietary funds
(business-type funds) the fund assets, liabilities, and net position.
Exhibit 6, on page 13, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, reported an
operating income for all business type funds except the golf course and curbside recycling. The
golf course reported decreases in net position (golf $57,690). It should be noted the GASB 68
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pension adjustment included $498,810 of pension expenses to be included in the business type
funds.
Exhibit 7, on page 14, Statement of Cash Flows reports for the proprietary funds (business type
funds) the individual fund cash flows. An item to note is in the total column the City enterprise
funds acquired $2,508,450 of capital assets and retired $1,401,416 of debt during 2021.
Exhibit 8, on page 16, reports the general fund revenues and expenditures compared to budget and
the variance from budget. The general fund revenues were below the budget by $628,361 and
expenses are below budget by $516,371. The revenues were below budget by so much due to the
American Rescue Plan being reported as revenue collected in advance. The 2021 budget was
projected to decrease reserves by $449,121 for the general fund while the actual results the general
fund decreased reserves by $320,228.
Exhibit 9, on page 17, reports the Second Penny Sales Tax fund revenues and expenditures
compared to budget and the variance from budget. Revenues are $215,547 above budget;
expenditures are $118,941 under budget and net transfers were $812,800 under budget. The
Second Penny sales tax budget for 2021 was for a decrease in reserves of $1,296,221 with an actual
decrease of $148,933. This is due to a decrease in transfers to the streetscape project.
Exhibit 10, on page 18, reports the Stormwater Special Revenue fund revenues and expenditures
compared to budget and the variance from budget.
Exhibit 11, on page 19, reports the Streetscape Capital Project fund revenues and expenditures
compared to budget and the variance from budget.
Exhibit 12, on page 20, reports the Bliss Pointe II FIT #7 Capital Project fund revenues and
expenditures compared to budget and the variance from budget.
Exhibit 13, on page 21, lists the City Deposit accounts. The City maintains change funds at the
City Hall Utility Office, Landfill, Recycling Center, Golf Course, Liquor Store and Police
Department. The operating checking account is at CorTrust Bank. City reserve funds are invested
in certificates of deposit at local banks, money market savings account, and SD Public Funds
Investment Trust by comparing yield rates. Investments are with the SD Public Funds Investment
Trust for bond reserves, bond payments, and landfill closure reserve. The Library Board
operations are reported as a governmental special revenue fund and, as such, their depositories are
included in the annual report. The investments at US Bank is the city hall bond reserve that, as
trustee for the bonds, they hold the bond reserve funds.
Exhibit A-1 and A-2, on page 26-29, contain the combining balance sheet for non-major
governmental funds and the combining statement of revenues and expenditures. The total from
Exhibit A-1 move forward to page 8 and totals from Exhibit A-2 move forward to page 10. Exhibit
A-3, on pages 26-27, report the budget vs. actual for the non-major special revenue funds and
Exhibit A-4, on pages 30-32, report the budget vs. actual for the capital projects funds.
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Exhibit B-1, B-2, and B-3, on pages 35, 36 &37, report the activities from the internal service
funds. These funds provide goods and services to other funds within the City. The copier fax
postage fund reported a decrease in net position of $588, the unemployment insurance fund
reported an increase in net position of $47, and custodial services fund reported an increase in net
position of $3,962 (Note the pension adjustment decreased personnel services $551 in the custodial
fund). While not large, we will monitor to see that charges for services meet the costs of providing
the services. The totals on these exhibits move forward to Exhibits 5, 6 & 7 on pages 12-14.
An item to note is that GASB 68 requires the city to report its proportionate share of the net South
Dakota Retirement System (SDRS) assets or liabilities. On June 30, 2020, the SDRS was 100.04%
funded thus the city reported a net pension asset of $12,615. On June 30, 2021, the SDRS was
105.52% funded thus the city is reporting a net pension asset of $3,364,540. The reporting of the
SDRS net assets/liabilities, pension related deferred outflows and pension related deferred inflows
resulted in a $1,259,756 increase in net assets of the city for the calendar year 2021.
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Council Agenda Memo
From:

Katie Redden, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Appointment to the Consolidated Board of Equalization

Presenter:

Katie Redden

Background: The County, City, and School District have each adopted resolutions to
consolidate the Board of Equalization within city limits. The Consolidated Board hears
property owner appeals of real estate valuation within the city and consists of the five
County Commissioners, three City Council members, and one School Board member. The
County Auditor and Director of Equalization schedule the appointments for the
consolidated board.
Prior to having a Consolidated Board of Equalization, the City Council, along with one
School Board member, comprised the local Board of Equalization that heard appeals. If the
property owner did not agree with the finding of the local board, they would then appeal to
the county board. If the Director of Equalization did not agree with the local board’s
decision, they could change the valuation and the property owner would need to go to the
county board to make their appeal again. The Consolidated Board makes it easier for the
property owner, as they only need to go before one board with their appeal.
Discussion: The City Council will need to appoint three members to serve as City
representatives on the consolidated board; the remaining members will be designated as
alternates to fill a vacancy if a member is unable to attend. Ina Peterson, Director of
Equalization, reported that the first day of hearings will be Tuesday, April 12, 2022,
beginning around 1:30 p.m., which in the last few years has not taken the entire afternoon.
Financial Consideration: None
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends the City Council appoint
three members to serve on the Consolidated Board of Equalization with the remaining
members being designated as alternates.
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Council Agenda Memo
From:

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 21, 2022

Subject:

Quote for Cleanup of Bike Trail from 12th Street to Morse Street.

Presenter:

Jose Dominguez

Background: In 2010, the City had to close the bike trail from 12th Street to West Street.
The closure was due to the riverbank eroding after flood events. Since 2010, the City has
been working with the State to reconstruct the portions of the trail that fell into the river.
With the strong possibility of the bike trail being reconstructed from Morse Street to West
Street this year, Staff inspected the bike trail from 12th Street to Morse Street to evaluate
the condition of the existing bike trail.
Discussion: The inspection performed by Staff was done towards the end of 2021. During
the inspection it was found that the recent floods deposited a considerable amount of
sediment on a portion of the existing bike trail. Additionally, the fence along the section
of the bike trail has also been damaged by vegetation growth and the flood event.
To have a traversable trail from Cotton Park to West Street, the section of trail between
12th Street and Morse Street should be cleaned of any vegetation and sedimentation. To
accomplish this, Staff contacted two local contractors for a quote for the removal of
sediment from the bike trail, the removal of vegetation (trees mainly) from 3 feet from
either side of the bike trail, and the removal of portions of the chain link fence that are
blocking the bike trail. Later, the fence on the northside of the bike trail will have to be
replaced.
Following are the quotes received:
CONTRACTOR
Walker Construction, Vermillion, SD
Martinson Construction, Vermillion, SD

QUOTE
$4,278.90
$9,690.00
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Financial Consideration: The City will utilize 2nd Penny funds to pay for this project.
Because this project was not included in the 2022 budget, it will have to be revised during
the 2022 budget review sessions.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Staff recommends awarding the project to Walker
Construction for the cleanup of the bike trail from 12th Street to Morse Street for $4,278.90.

CITY OF VERMILLION
INVOICES PAYABLE-MARCH 21, 2022
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

A & B BUSINESS, INC
AMAZON BUSINESS
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES
AT&T MOBILITY
BANNER ASSOCIATES, INC
BEAKEL SENTAYEHU
BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING
BRIAN HAMILTON
BRIAN SEXE
BROADCASTER PRESS
BUHLS CLEANERS
BUREAU OF ADMINISTRATION
BURNS & MCDONNELL
BUTCH'S PROPANE INC
BUTLER MACHINERY CO.
CALLAWAY GOLF
CANNON TECHNOLOGIES, INC
CARDIS FENCE & IRON CO
CASK & CORK
CENTURYLINK
CHAMBERLAIN OIL CO
CLAY COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT
CLAY-UNION ELECTRIC CORP
COAST TO COAST SOLUTIONS
CORE & MAIN LP
COYOTE CHEMICAL COMPANY
DAKOTA BEVERAGE
DAKOTA PC WAREHOUSE
DAKOTA RIGGERS & TOOL SUPPLY
DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS
ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY
ELECTRONIC ENGINEERING
FAST AUTO GLASS
FASTENAL COMPANY
FEDEX.
GLOBAL DIST.
GLOBAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY
GRAHAM TIRE CO.
GRAYMONT (WI) LLC
GREGG PETERS
HEINE ELECTRIC & IRRIGATION
HELMS & ASSOCIATES
INGRAM
JACKS UNIFORM & EQPT

COPIER CONTRACT/COPIES
SUPPLIES
UNIFORM CLEANING
MOBILE HOT SPOTS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
REFUND PARKING TCKT OVERPMT
BOOKS
REIMBURSEMENT OPERATOR EXAM
REFUND PARKING TCKT OVERPMT
ADVERTISING
MAT/MOP SERVICE
TELEPHONE BILL
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PROPANE
PARTS/REPAIRS
MERCHANDISE
PARTS
FENCE-BIKE PATH
MERCHANDISE
TELEPHONE
SUPPLIES
CRACK SEALER
ELECTRICITY
SUPPLIES
PARTS
TRIGGER GUN/HI-PRESSURE WAND
MERCHANDISE
MONITOR/ADAPTER
INSPECTION/REPAIRS
TRAFFIC PAINT
SUPPLIES
BATTERIES
REPAIRS
SUPPLIES
SHIPPING
MERCHANDISE
VACUUM BELTS
TIRES
CHEMICALS
MANAGERS FEE
REPAIRS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
BOOKS
DUTY JACKET

190.95
402.37
371.87
423.81
8,003.00
5.00
72.24
60.00
5.00
1,030.27
413.74
371.04
3,451.78
2,877.80
4,395.11
6.47
2,101.20
4,284.00
504.00
1,559.41
26.56
2,500.00
1,953.62
319.48
122.20
66.70
9,043.17
112.98
297.27
5,359.20
175.30
253.65
250.00
176.64
30.46
210.00
23.30
414.12
4,512.87
6,000.00
247.45
699.41
927.60
196.45

45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91

JESSICA LOVETT
JOHN A CONKLING DIST.
JOHNSEN HEATING & COOLING
JOHNSON BROTHERS OF SD
JONES FOOD CENTER
KALIN KNIEF
LANCE TYKWINSKI
LESSMAN ELEC. SUPPLY CO
LOCATORS AND SUPPLIES, INC
LOREN FISCHER DISPOSAL
LOU'S GLOVES
MALLOY ELECTRIC
MART AUTO BODY & MARINE LLC
MATHESON TRI-GAS, INC
MATTER LAW OFFICE, PROF LLC
MC&R POOLS, INC
MEDICAL WASTE TRANSPORT, INC
MEREDITH BOOKS
MICRO MARKETING LLC
MIDAMERICAN
MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATION
MIDWEST ALARM CO
MOBOTREX MOBILITY & TRAFFIC
NAVIGATE360, LLC
NCL OF WISCONSIN, INC
NEBRASKA JOURNAL-LEADER
NETSYS+
NORTHERN TRUCK EQPT CORP
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
PEPSI COLA OF SIOUXLAND
PING/KARSTEN MFG CORP
QUALITY MOTORS
QUILL
REDI TOWING
REPUBLIC NATIONAL DISTRIBUTING
RIVERSIDE TECHNOLOGIES, INC
ROCKMOUNT RESEARCH & ALLOY
ROCO FILMS INTERNATIONAL
RUNNING SUPPLY, LLC
SANFORD HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL
SANITATION PRODUCTS INC
SCANTRON CORPORATION
SCHWARTZLE CONSTRUCTION LLC
SD DENR
SD FEDERAL PROPERTY AGENCY
SD LIBRARY ASSOCIATION
SD MUNICIPAL LEAGUE

REIMBURSEMENT
MERCHANDISE
REPAIRS
MERCHANDISE
SUPPLIES
MEALS/MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT
LODGING REIMBURSEMENT
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES
HAUL CARDBOARD
SUPPLIES
PARTS
TOWING
CYLINDER RENTAL
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
REGISTRATION
HAUL MEDICAL WASTE
BOOKS
BOOKS
UTILITIES
INTERNET/CABLE SERVICE
ANNUAL INSPECTION
PARTS
REGISTRATION
SUPPLIES
ADVERTISING
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES/DOMAIN
PARTS
PARTS
MERCHANDISE
MERCHANDISE
REPAIRS
SUPPLIES
TOWING
MERCHANDISE
MAINTENANCE
SUPPLIES
VIRTUAL SCREENING LICENSE
PARTS/SUPPLIES
TESTING
PARK BRAKE SOLENOID
MAINTENANCE
DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE
LANDFILL OPERATIONS FEE
SUPPLIES
MEMBERSHIP DUES
REGISTRATION

13.83
6,779.60
5,554.45
10,963.13
218.27
169.90
151.59
240.00
484.10
1,200.00
253.00
2,529.73
75.00
91.75
3,757.30
650.00
151.20
35.91
30.00
18,932.90
1,576.74
342.10
847.00
749.00
572.77
34.95
2,660.50
1,595.84
268.27
2,496.75
1,318.16
145.00
360.70
225.00
6,966.30
1,594.00
60.50
150.00
974.72
623.00
323.42
1,821.00
825,201.42
2,578.89
98.50
766.00
286.00

92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119

SD SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
SIGN SOLUTIONS
SIOUX EQUIPMENT
SOUTHERN GLAZER'S OF SD
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS
STERN OIL CO.
STURDEVANTS AUTO PARTS
SYNCB/AMAZON
TAILWIND VERMILLION LLC
TARGET SOLUTIONS LEARNING
TASTE OF HOME BOOKS
TAYLOR MADE
THE LUMBERYARD LLC
THREAD & INK
TODDS ELECTRIC SERVICE
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE
USA BLUEBOOK
USPS-POC
VERMILLION ACE HARDWARE
VERMILLION FASTPITCH SOFTBALL
VIKING INDUSTRIAL PAINTING
WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WI-MN
WATER RIGHTS PROGRAM, DENR
WESTERN IOWA TECH
YANKTON JANITORIAL SUPPLY
ZACHARY HAMMOND
ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE
ZEROFRICTION LLC

REGISTRATION
SUPPLIES
FUEL LEVEL GAUGE
MERCHANDISE
SUPPLIES
FUEL
PARTS
BOOKS/DVDS/SUPPLIES
REFUND DUPLICATE RENTAL REG PMT
MEMBERSHIP/MAINTENANCE FEE
BOOK
MERCHANDISE
BLOCKS
SHIRTS
INSTALL LOAD MGMT
SHIPPING
PARTS
POSTAGE FOR METER
SUPPLIES
SPONSORSHIP
GROUND STORAGE RESEVOIR IMP
WASTE HAULING
FUTURE USE PERMIT
TRUCK DRIVING LAB
SUPPLIES
REIMBURSEMENT OPERATOR EXAM
SUPPLIES
MERCHANDISE
GRAND TOTAL

1,000.00
343.18
474.48
5,715.75
921.32
20,075.94
462.63
280.30
1,815.00
7,116.92
35.98
144.86
587.20
54.00
51.01
103.89
2,801.88
700.00
483.58
350.00
37,512.72
915.77
215.00
300.00
309.50
60.00
79.35
715.98
$1,054,991.92

